ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2014
3:09 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Rei nbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 169(FI N)

"An Act establishing in the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services a statew de imunization program and the State Vaccine
Assessnent Council; <creating a vaccine assessnment account;
requiring a vaccine assessnent from assessable entities and
ot her program participants for statew de immnization purchases;
repealing the tenporary child and adult imunization program
and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BILL NO 162
"An Act authorizing a licensed optonetrist to prescribe a
phar maceuti cal agent contai ni ng hydrocodone. "
- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 290
"An Act relating to eligibility for nedical assistance coverage;
and providing for an effective date.”
- Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 169

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2014



SHORT TI TLE:
SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 10/ 14
02/ 10/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
03/ 03/ 14
03/ 03/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 07/ 14
03/ 07/ 14

03/ 21/ 14
03/ 21/ 14
03/ 24/ 14
03/ 24/ 14
03/ 25/ 14
03/ 25/ 14
03/ 25/ 14
03/ 27/ 14
03/ 27/ 14
03/ 27/ 14
04/ 03/ 14

BILL: SB 162

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

IIIIT3IT3T22

| MVUNI ZATI ON PROGRAM  VACCI NE ASSESSMENTS
SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HSS

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT CS 4DP NEW Tl TLE

DP: STEDMAN, M CClI CHE, MEYER, ELLIS
FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER HSS

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 169(HSS) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HSS)

FIN AT 5: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Schedul ed But Not Heard

FIN AT 5: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Moved CSSB 169(FIN) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS 5DP NEW Tl TLE

DP: MVEYER, KELLY, Bl SHOP, DUNLEAVY,
CLSON

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 169( FI N)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HSS, FIN

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: HYDROCODONE PRESCRI PTI ON BY OPTOVETRI STS

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 07/ 14
02/ 07/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 21/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14
02/ 24/ 14

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) OLSON

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT 1DP 3NR

DP: MEYER

NR: STEDMAN, M CCI CHE, ELLIS
HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

- 2- April 3, 2014



02/ 24/ 14 (S) Moved SB 162 Qut of Committee

02/ 24/ 14 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 24/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 24/ 14 (S) VERS| ON: SB 162

03/ 25/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 14 (H) HSS

04/ 03/ 14 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

TOM STUDLER, St aff

Representati ve Pete Hi ggins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced the House commttee substitute
(CS), |abeled 28-LS1219\T, Wallace/ M schel, 4/2/14, for CSSB 169
and answered questions.

SENATOR CATHY Q ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions as the sponsor of SB
169.

JANE CONWAY, Staff

Senat or Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 169 on behal f
of the bill sponsor, Senator G essel.

MARI SSA WATKI NS

Director of State Policy

PhRMVA

Washi ngton, DC

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 169.

SHEELA TALLMAN

Prenmera Blue Cross Blue Shield of Al aska

Seattl e, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 169.

LAURA SARCONE

Nurse Mdw fe

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 169.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2014



CARRI E DOYLE, MD

Al aska Cinical Nurse Specialist Association

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 169.

JANETTA SHOCKMAN, Presi dent

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 169.

PATRI Cl A SENNER, Prof essional Practice D rector

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 169.

MARI E DARLI N, Comm ssi oner

Al aska Comm ssion on Agi ng

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 169.

WARD HURLBURT, MD, Chief Medical Oficer/Director

Di vision of Public Health

Central Ofice

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
SB 169.

DAVE SCOTT, Staff

Senat or Donald d son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 162 on behalf of the bill
sponsor, Senator d son.

RACHEL REI NHARDT, MD

Ameri can Acadeny of Ophthal nol ogi sts

M1 Creek, Washington

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 162.

JEFF GONNASON, OD

Al aska Optonetric Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 162.

DAVI D KARPI K, QD
Pr esi dent

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2014



Al aska Optonetric Association
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 162.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:09:19 PM

CHAIR PETE HIGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:09 p. m
Representatives Higgins, Reinbold, Keller, Tarr, and Seaton were
present at the call to order. Representatives Nageak and Pruitt
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

SB 169-1 MMUNI ZATI ON PROGRAM VACCI NE ASSESSMVENTS

3:10: 12 PM

CHAIR HI GA@ NS announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 169(FIN), "An Act establishing in the
Depar t ment of Health and  Soci al Services a statew de
i mruni zati on program and the State Vaccine Assessnent Council;
creating a vaccine assessment account; requiring a vaccine
assessnent from assessable entities and ot her program
participants for statew de imruni zation purchases; repealing the
temporary child and adult imunization program and providing
for an effective date." [In front of the commttee was CSSB
169(FIN), |abeled 28-LS1219\1.]

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for CSSB 169, | abel ed 28- LS1219\T,
Wal | ace/ M schel , 4/2/14, as the working draft. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

3:10: 53 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from3:10 p.m to 3:12 p. m

3:12: 49 PM

TOM STUDLER, Staff, Representative Pete Hi ggins, Alaska State
Legislature, directed attention to the changes proposed in the

wor king draft: page 2, line 4, which established a three year
phase in program and provided for voluntary participation; page
2, lines 30 - 31, which included two health care providers

licensed in the state, one of whom nust be a pediatrician, for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2014



the council; page 4, lines 1 - 4, which added a requirenment to
submt to the commssioner and the legislature an annual

financi al report, i ncluding assessnent determ nations and
overall <costs of the program for an on-going review of the
program page 4, line 13, which added an increnental phase-in of

the entities at the discretion of the comm ssioner; page 5,
lines 5 - 6, which added an opt out of the program cl ause under
procedures approved by the conm ssioner; page 5, lines 10-12,
which stated that an assessable entity nmay not deny a claim for
coverage of vaccines based on the decision of a health care
provider to elect not to participate in the program page 7,
line 7, which extended the sunset date for repeal to allow three
years of a phase in period wth an additional tw years of
operation to determne the viability of the program and [page
7], line 15, which declared that this would take effect on
January 1, 2015. He explained that an anendnment by the
commttee could resolve an inadvertent error on [page 7] line
15, which included Section 7 to take effect on January 1, 2015.
He explained that Section 6, page 7, line 8, repealed the act,
removed the noney, and placed it in the wunobligated funds;
however, waiting for an effective date of January 1, 2015 neant
that the departnent could not access those funds wuntil that
date, and would miss the flu season vacci nes.

3:17: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 2, line 4, and asked if,
after three years to inplenent the procedure for phase in to the
program everyone was then included.

MR. STUDLER replied that this was correct.

CHAIR HIGA NS explained that the three year phase in period
woul d allow the conm ssioner latitude to nmake the program work
He pointed to the opt out |anguage which allowed any entity out
during the transitional period. He opined that this three year
period allowed plenty of time for each entity to determne if
t he program worked for them

MR. STUDLER pointed out that this was detailed on page 5, line
5.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked where it stated that the program was

mandat ory participation, or voluntary participation, after three
years.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2014



CHAIR HIGA NS explained that it was mandatory under the earlier
version, but that the proposed CS allowed "a slow but sure
process, a three year transitional period for the entities." He
declared that the point was to bring everyone on board, and to
ensure that self-insured third party payers could cone on board
imredi ately or at a slower rate if need be.

3:20: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked how this would affect the vaccine
pricing, as the point was to get the purchase cost down.

CHAIR HGANS replied that he did not know the answer, as they
did not know who would participate. He opined that Prenera
covered the nobst people in the state, and would nost Ilikely
cover 70 percent.

3:21:06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 3, line 5, the
director of the division of insurance or the director's
designee, and page 2, line 28, the departnent's chief nedica

officer for public health, and asked if there was any intention
to allow a designee for the chief medical officer.

CHAIR HI GA NS asked that the sponsor address this.
3:.22:31 PM

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, Al aska State Legislature, explained that
there was a not yet proposed commttee substitute (CS) which had
made that change to include chief nedical officer or designee.
She pointed out that, as this was a council and not a board or
conmi ssi on, there was not any cost. In response to
Representative Keller and Chair Hggins, she clarified her
agreenent for the change to add "or designee" after chief
nmedi cal officer.

JANE CONVAY, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel, Al aska State
Legi slature, pointed to page 2, line 28, for the addition of "or
desi gnee" after chief medical officer.

3:24:32 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.

3:25:02 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2014



MARI SSA WATKINS, Director of State Policy, PhRVA explained that
PhRVA represented the |eading bio-pharnmaceutical researchers in
the country, and its "nmenbers are commtted to finding
tomorrow s cures and treatnments for some of the nobst serious
di seases. " She stated opposition by PhRVA for SB 169, and
offered the belief that the proposed |egislation would not
achieve its goal for ease of vaccine admnistration and high
vaccination rates. She stated that the proposed bill would make
t he vacci ne market nore conpl ex. She noted that the Affordable
Care and Pat i ent Protection Act "ensures nmuch nor e
conprehensive, first dollar coverage for vaccines for the
i nsured popul ation.” She stated that the "conplicated program
envisioned by SB 169 is unnecessary to raise vaccination rates
and adds adm nistrative burden on providers." She opined that
the proposed bill could jeopardize the conpetitive vaccine
market. She warned that the use of Medicaid funding for vaccine
purchase for non-Medicaid recipients could warrant review by the
federal governnent and jeopardize the Medicaid funding to
Al aska. She detailed that PhRVA nenbers wanted to ensure the
existence for all possible avenues to achieve the w dest
vaccination rates in every state. She opined that SB 169 woul d
do nore harm t han good.

3:27:22 PM

CHAIR HHGE@ NS asked if PhRMA had also rejected the other eight
states which currently had this program

M5. WATKINS replied that PhRVA conpani es had worked with sone of
these states to inplenent the prograns however, PhRVA now
opposed the <creation of universal purchase prograns. She
suggest ed t hat there were better sol utions for nor e
vacci nati ons.

3:28:17 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS asked for clarification that PhRVA previously
supported these prograns, however PhRVA now believed that these
progranms for adults or children should not be inplenented.

M5. WATKINS expressed her agreenent, stating that PhRVA nenber
conpanies no longer felt it was in the best interest of the
vacci ne community for a universal purchase program

CHAIR HIGGA NS relayed that he had spoken wth other states
having this program and "it seenms to be working very well for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2014



t hem " He asked why PhRVA was opposed to the program other
than its claimthat the programwas "directing market forces."

3:29:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = TARR  asked for clarification about t he
af orenenti oned statenment regardi ng Medicaid dollars.

M5. WATKINS explained that PhRVA believed that the wuse of
Medicaid dollars to purchase vaccines for non- Medi cai d
recipients could warrant review by the federal governnent,
t her eby j eopardi zing Medi caid funding to Al aska.

CHAIR HIGA NS expressed his agreenent that Medicaid funding
coul d not be used for private insurance.

3:30:47 PM

SHEELA TALLMAN, Prenera Blue Cross Blue Shield of Al aska,
relayed that Prenmera Blue Cross Blue Shield had been working
with the Division of Public Health, as well as other
st akehol ders, and were supportive of the concept of the proposed
bill to maintain the universal vaccine program She referenced
the letter of support, [Included in nenbers' packets] which was
for a previous version of the proposed bill. She noted that the
Al aska Health Care Comm ssion had included a recomendation in
its 2011 report to ensure that the vaccine program was
adequately funded, and had included consequences for the
elimnation of the vaccine programin Al aska. She reported that
Premera had not had a chance to review the nost current
proposal s. She expressed concern for making the program
voluntary for the payers. She pointed out that a critical
conponent of the program was that all payers participate and pay
for the share of vaccines for its nenbership. If all entities
did not participate, the costs wuld increase for Al aska
resi dents. She stated that vaccines were nore cost effective
than treatnent of illness and disease. She offered the belief
that a statewide universal vaccine program would help to
alleviate any issues for access, especially with a goal of
i nprovenent to the inmunization rate

M5. TALLMAN, in response to Chair Higgins, explained that her
understanding was that the opt-in, opt-out option for providers
was directed predom nantly at the adult popul ation.

CHAIR HIGANS replied that the previous version had not
designated for children or adults.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- April 3, 2014



M5. TALLMAN offered her belief that the opt-in was not an issue
for the payer accessible entity side.

CHAIR HHGA NS asked for clarification that it was now a concern
al though it had not previously been a concern. He stated that
it had not been changed in this version of the proposed bill.

M5. TALLMAN expressed her wunderstanding that this was now
voluntary for the payers.

CHAIR HHGE NS said this was the sanme as previously.
3:34:38 PM

M5. TALLMAN said that Prenera had concerns for unintended
consequences from the changes in the proposed bill, as it could
underm ne the entire program She suggested that there would be
few, if any, vaccines purchased by the state, and costs would
I ncrease. She pointed out that Prenmera participated in the
uni versal vaccine prograns in other states, and was key in
devel opnment of the successful program in Washington State, which
was very simlar to the concept of proposed SB 169.

CHAIR HHGA NS replied that SB 169 was different than the program
in Washington State, as the proposed bill included adults,
simlar only to Vernont.

M5. TALLMAN replied that Prenera was aware that the proposed
bill included adult wvaccines. She suggested that the program
begin with vaccine for kids, and then inplenent the vaccine for
adul ts.

CHAIR HIGA NS asked that testinony be |limted to the mechanics
of the proposed bill.

3:37:23 PM

LAURA SARCONE, Nurse Mdw fe, said that her testinony was based
on the essential nature of vaccines for pregnant wonen, as the
i mmune system was conprom sed during pregnancy. She spoke about
the risks and dangers of flu for pregnant wonen, including pre-
term |abor, respiratory failure, and premature birth. She
reported that Centers for D sease Control and Prevention (CDC)
had recommended that all pregnant wonen be vaccinated agai nst
tetanus, diphtheria, and pertussis in the third trinester of
pregnancy, regardless of prior history for this vaccination.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- April 3, 2014



She declared that the proposed bill wuld allow private
obstetric and famly ©practice providers to provide the
recommended vaccine protection to pregnant patients. She urged
support for the proposed bill.

3:39: 48 PM

CARRI E DOYLE, MD, Alaska Cinical Nurse Specialist Association
said that she was concerned with the health of adult patients,

especially for those patients adm nistered to hospitals. She
reported that imunized patients were less likely to require
hospitalization from illnesses that were preventable through
vacci nati ons. She declared that the cost and availability of

i muni zations was of the utnpbst concern. She urged support of
proposed SB 169.

3:41:10 PM

JANETTA SHOCKMAN, President, Alaska Nurses Association, said
that she specialized in adult, critical care nedicine. She
spoke in support of SB 169. She declared that illnesses can be

life threatening, and life altering, and that it was necessary
for the vaccines to be easily accessible and affordable to
protect all Al askans. She stated that the Alaska Nurses
Associ ati on supported the proposed bill.

3:43: 07 PM

PATRI CI A SENNER, Professional Practice Director, Alaska Nurses
Associ ati on, spoke about the need for a vaccine program for the
uninsured in order to buy vaccines at a nuch | ower rate.

3:44:17 PM

MARI E DARLI N, Comm ssioner, Alaska Comm ssion on Aging, pointed
to the letter from AARP in support of the bill [Included in
nenbers' packets]. She stated that the Al aska Conm ssion on
Aging was in support of vaccines for all. She decl ared that
seniors needed to have the option and the ability for vaccines.
She spoke of the concern for shingles and the need for its
vacci nati on. She explained that she wanted to see an
i mmuni zation program to cover both adults and children. She
decl ared full support of the proposed bill.

3:47: 36 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2014



WARD HURLBURT, MD, Chief Medical Oficer/Director, D vision of
Public Health, Central Ofice, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services, directed his response to questions previously posed to
hi m He explained that the patients, the public, the payers,
and the providers would all benefit from the vaccine program
presented in SB 169. He reported that it would result in a nore
efficient system with less adm nistrative workload and a | ower

cost for the pharmaceutical nmanufacturers. He expressed his
agreenent that the pharmaceutical industry was a critical
partner for keeping Americans healthy. He said that vaccine

prices would increase, and the assessnents would al so increase.
He reported that the Idaho vaccine program was different than
t he proposed program in Al aska, as the Al aska program would not
draw from the general fund. He relayed that tribal entities
woul d continue to receive the state distributed vaccine under
the Vaccines for Children program He said that the tribal
program woul d have the option to opt in to the program He said
that the proposed program was designed to pay for people wthout
i nsurance, as 30-45 mllion Anericans would still be uninsured,
by choice or by need, even with the Affordable Care and Patient
Protection Act. He referred to herd inmunity which protected
all of society. Directing attention to the adult prograns, he
reported that the Vernmont program the only state program for
adults, was working very well. He stated that ERI SA plans
cannot be mandated for coverage by the state, although other
states had successfully established that an assessnment can be
i nposed on the ERI SA plans. He reported that payers who el ected
to buy the vaccine thenselves were reinbursed at a conparable

rate, often less than the retail purchase price; hence, an
incentive to participate. He explained that a successful
program would have a small positive economc inpact on the
i nsurance conpani es, about a 2 percent profit margin. He said

there was an option to purchase adult vaccines through nulti
state purchasing cooperatives. He expl ained that providers who
had purchased vacci nes woul d have a phase in period, in order to
allow for reinbursenent to those previous purchases. He stated
that 75 percent of Medicaid enrollees were wonen and children,
and were already covered. He clarified that federal dollars
woul d not be used inappropriately. He expressed concern for
opt-out payers and third party admnistrators, as it would nake
it nmore difficult to have a successful program w thout their
partici pation.

3:55:19 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS said that mny providers had contacted him
requesting a choice for the opt-out option, as their concern was

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2014



for directing market forces toward conpetitors. He expl ai ned

that it was up to the insurance conpanies how to pay. He
decl ared that insurance conpanies were very good at figuring the
rat es. He stated that there was concern by the providers for

t he unknown cost of the assessnent.
3:58: 46 PM

DR. HURLBURT pointed out that the assessnment would be on the
payers, with an assurance that there was not double paynent. He
said that the only possibility that providers pay an assessnent
woul d be an optional participation by some unique providers. He
said that a disadvantage for non-participation would be the
i ncreased adm nistrative requirenents for double record keeping

and double storage facilities. He noted that providers would
only have an assessnment iif they were both a payer and a
provi der, such as Veterans Administration or the triba
pr ogr ans.

CHAIR HGA NS directed attention to page 4 of the original bill
whi ch described the annual assessnment reporting requirenents.
He said that the aforenentioned "other program participants”
created "a little bit of a grey area.”

4:01:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to Version T, page 4,
line 18, and asked if there was any reason for "or other program
participant” if there were assessable entities.

DR. HURLBURT offered his understanding that the private practice
doctors would not be assessed. He offered that Indian Health
Service received vaccines at no cost for Native Anerican
children and Medicaid enrollees, although the facilities often
al so functioned as a community hospital for other payers. He
said that this gave the tribal programthe option to participate
in order to lower their vaccine costs to the public, although
participation could not be nmandat ed.

CHAIR HGA NS directed attention to page 4, line 31, [Version I|]
and said that a health care provider or group of providers may
opt into the program if approved by the conm ssioner.

CHAIR HHGE NS, in response to Representative Seaton, clarified
that although he had referenced Version C, this was also stated
in Version T, page 5, line 7. He stated that any concerns were
corrected with the option to opt-in or opt-out.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- April 3, 2014



DR. HURLBURT referenced earlier testinony for pregnant nothers,
stating that this allowed the opportunity to opt in, wthout
becom ng an assessable entity.

4:04: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 4, |ines 16-19,
and asked if the definition for program participant was better
clarified if included in the assessnment portion.

DR. HURLBURT noted that he did not have expertise for witing
| egi sl ation, al though the intent of the suggestion for
clarification was consi stent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the assessable entities
were being assessed, and not the providers; therefore, both
should not be included in the sanme sentence. He asked that this
be considered for clarification.

CHAIR HI GA NS explained that this |anguage had been included in
Version T, page 4, Ilines 13 - 15, and it allowed the
comi ssioner to approve who were the program partici pants.

4:07:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER shared that this was tied to page 2, line
3, in which "the conm ssioner shall establish a procedure to
phase in the program over a three-year period.”" He stated that
the discretion of the comm ssioner had increased.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that page 2 referenced an
assessabl e entity and not a program partici pant.

CHAIR HHGA NS read page 4, line 13, "an assessable entity and
other program participant."” In response to Representative
Seaton, he offered his wunderstanding that "other program
participant” could constitute other than a provider, such as a
third party insurer; hence, the decision to leave it in the
proposed bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested a review of this, so that there
woul d not be any confusion in the proposed bill.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his agreenent for the confusion,

and he pointed out that some entities were in both of the
categories, insurers and providers.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2014



CHAIR HGA NS offered his belief that this had been resolved
when providers were allowed to opt out.

4:10: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for <clarification of the opt-out
provision on page 5, line 5, whereby an assessable entity could
opt-out at any tinme, and he asked if the providers should be
added to this provision. He stated that there would not be a
| arge enough assessnment pool if the assessable entities, the
i nsurance conpanies, could opt out. He pointed out that the

sunset clause was only four years.

CHAIR HIGA NS asked whether insurance conpanies should be
mandated for their participation in the State of Al aska. He
declared that the Affordable Care and Protection Act mandated

and "one of the things that offends nme the nobst" was the
mandat e. He offered his understanding that "this thing [the
proposed progranm] is the best thing since buttered toast." He
declared that all insurance conpanies wanted to opt-in to this
program and therefore, there should not be any problens. He
noted that the insurance conpanies had three years to make this
determ nati on. He declared that "I have a real problem
mandati ng insurance conpanies, forcing them to do a program"”
He offered his belief that a mandate was not "the Anmerican way."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that the flexibility to opt-out
at any time could affect the purchase for quantities of
vacci nes.

CHAIR HHGE NS, directing attention to page 5, line 5, replied
that the opt-out only extended for the first three years of the
phase i n period.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that, as vaccines had to be
ordered ahead, it would be beneficial to have an opt-out w ndow
equi valent to the order period for vaccines.

CHAIR HHGE NS replied that was the idea of the three years.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about a wi ndow for commitnent during
each year to allow for the order of vaccines.

CHAIR HI GA NS expressed his understanding and agreed to give
this idea nore consideration

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- April 3, 2014



4:14: 48 PM

DR. HURLBURT said that he had concerns with the opt-out for the
assessable entities, the payers. He expressed his agreenent
that the insurance conpanies should not be told what to do, even
if participation was in their best interest. He expl ai ned that
the proposed bill was for assessnments to insurance conpanies
that were required, or had decided, to cover the vaccines, and
the assessnment was only for the vaccine doses they required.
This proposed bill saved the insurance conpanies noney, and it
al so generated the funding to pay for vaccines for uninsured
i ndi vi dual s, which benefited everyone.

4:16: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for clarification that the insurance
conpanies were obligated to supply the vaccines, and that, in
reality, they did not have the choice.

DR. HURLBURT expressed his agreenent, and "to date, it's been
their option, their enlightened option, because they save noney
if they can prevent sonebody ny age from getting pneunonia with
t he pneunococcal vaccine." He pointed out that the Affordable
Care and Patient Protection Act al so mandated this coverage.

CHAIR HHGA NS said that the insurance conpany only had to pay
when the provider billed themfor the services.

DR. HURLBURT explained that the two nethods to Ilevy the
assessnent were based on either vaccine doses given or covered
lives. He relayed that Prenera had expressed its preference for
t he vacci ne dosage basis. He opined that this may not be the
nost favorable pricing approach. He said that the covered |ives
liability could be adjusted according to the nunbers of people
who refused the vacci ne.

4:19: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if there was an option for two years,
i nstead of the current three years.

DR. HURLBURT replied that, as the first year was transitiona

under the proposed bill, it was necessary to give the program
enough years to see if it was successful. He reported that the
New Hanpshire program was in its eleventh vyear, and its
i mruni zation rate for two year olds had increased by 20 percent
and was now the second best in the United States.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- April 3, 2014



4:21:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, directing attention to page 7, line 7,
asked if those dates should be June 30 to repeal and July 1 to
take effect, in order to correspond to the fiscal year, or was

that not the nost optimal when ordering an assessnent.

DR. HURLBURT offered his belief that the fiscal year basis would
make nore sense. He pointed out that currently there was stil
funding and a supply of vaccine for the startup.

4:23:10 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS closed public testinmony, and said that SB 169
woul d be held over.

4: 23: 52 PM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

SB 162- HYDROCODONE PRESCRI PTI ON BY OPTOVETRI STS

4:25:18 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 162, "An Act authorizing a licensed optonetri st
to prescribe a pharmaceutical agent containing hydrocodone. "

4:25:22 PM

DAVE  SCOIT, Staff, Senat or Donald Q son, Al aska State
Legi slature, stated that the proposed bill created an exception
in law in case of federal action. Currently, optonetrists were
entitled to prescribe hydrocodone for four day prescriptions.
The proposed bill did not change the scope of the practice of
optonmetry, however, as the U 'S. Food and Drug Admnistration
(FDA) was considering a change for hydrocodone from Schedule 111

to Schedule Il, there would be a |apse in allowable coverage by
optometri sts. He pointed out that there was a difference
between living in the bush and urban conmunities, especially
Wi th access to optonetrists. He noted that often a generali st

doctor needed to admnister to eye injuries in rural Al aska,
until the patient could visit an eye specialist. He stated that
the nechanics of the proposed bill were to allow optonetrists in
Al aska to continue to prescribe oxycodone in the event the FDA
deci ded to make any change.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2014



4:28:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked about the cost of hydrocodone versus
other simlar alternative prescriptions.

MR. SCOIT replied that he did not know the costs.

REPRESENTATI VE  NAGEAK asked about t he availability for
hydrocodone versus the alternative prescriptions in the bush
conmuni ties.

MR. SCOIT replied that he did not know the availability.
4:29:29 PM
CHAIR HI GA NS [opened public testinony].

RACHEL REINHARDT, WMD, Anerican Acadeny of Ophthal nol ogi sts,
stated that she was the current president of the WAshington
Acadeny of Eye Physicians and Surgeons. She reported that,
after several years of research, the FDA had recommended to the
U.S. Drug Enforcenent Adm nistration (DEA) to change hydrocodone
containing narcotics to a nore restricted class. She shared
that the agencies concluded that there was a national crisis
with a 300 percent increase in prescription narcotics over the
past 20 years, and that hydrocodone was "at the top of that
[ist.” She relayed that there had also been a 500 percent
increase for prescription narcotic deaths in the United States.
These prescription narcotic deaths now outnunbered the conbined
total deaths from illegal narcotics, with Al aska ranking fifth
in the nation. She pointed out that one step toward a solution
was to restrict the nunber of providers who can prescribe these

narcoti cs. She addressed a possible concern that sone rural
patients would suffer, stating that there were nunerous
alternatives. She relayed that she prescribed other narcotics

such as codeine, as well as non-narcotic pain nedications. She
relayed that a lot of painful eye conditions were treated with
bandages, contact |enses, and drops. She referred to a list of
15 non-narcotic pain nedications as alternatives for noderate to
severe pain. She expressed her understanding to the concern for

rural areas. She addressed the proposed Ilimtations to
prescriptions, which, although it sounded hel pful, still allowed
access to the narcotics by a non-patient. She stated that the

medi cal community at large was responsible for the drug
epidemc, and this state of enmergency had led to the "conscious,
i ntenti onal effort" to reclassify sonme drugs to a nore

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2014



restrictive class, and thereby limt the nunber of providers
allowed to prescribe. She declared that this was about
protecting patients. She reported that prescription narcotic
deaths were the nunber one cause of unintentional death in the
United States, surpassing car accidents. She requested
opposition to SB 162.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed out that the Al aska State
Legi sl ature had been working on a proposed bill for a database
of opioid prescriptions, which did not appear to having funding
to continue beyond July 1, 2014. He expressed his frustration
with this.

DR. REINHARDT replied that an increase to the nunber of
providers for these prescriptions would necessitate a database.
She stated that there also needed to be regular w de spread
distribution of nmedications for overdose. She offered to
voluntarily stop prescription of Vicodin [hydrocodone] just to
make a point to the dangers of prescription drug abuse.

4:38:15 PM

JEFF GONNASON, OD, Al aska Optonetric Association, explained that
a controlled substance was a drug or chemcal which was
regulated by the governnent, and classified according to
schedules for the potential of abuse. He said that each
schedule had a nore restrictive prescription procedure,
including tighter record keeping and databases to track the
nmedi cation to prevent abuse. He reported that the Alaska State
Legi sl ature, in 2000, had voted to authorize Al aska optonetrists

to prescribe nedications, including schedule 1l narcotics,
al t hough this was subsequently vetoed by the governor. He noted
that a later law allowed prescriptions for Schedules 111, 1V,
and V narcotics, with a mxinmm 4-day supply, only for eye
condi ti ons. He stated that this conprom se had been acceptable
as eye pain was often acute, but resolved itself in less than
four days. He noted that hydrocodone conbination drugs were
included in Schedule 111, In response to an earlier question,
he said that these generic drugs were not very expensive. He

declared that there had been zero instances of abuse, and zero
conplaints or actions by the state board or any other drug
enf or cenent agency agai nst any Alaska optonetrist. He
enphasi zed that these drugs were inportant for managi ng severe
eye pain. He pointed out that the proposed reclassification of
the drugs would "once again be the federal governnment regul ation
overriding our state law" He stated that this drug was the
best tool for managing acute eye pain. He stressed that the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2014



national drug abuse problem had nothing to do wth Al aska
optonetrists. He said that, as optonetry was qualified and well
trained, people did not cone to them for illicit drugs. He
expressed his disagreement with Dr. Reinhardt, stating that the
federal purpose was "to tighten the abuse potential from
probl ematic users,” which he clained did not include optonetry
because of the restrictions. He offered an anecdote about an
incident in a rural comunity. He opined that the proposed bil
did not make any changes from the ~current practice by
optonetrists in Al aska.

CHAIR HGANS asked if there was a nedical doctor for
prescriptions in the bush comunities.

DR. GONNASON replied that very often there was not a nedica
doctor in the villages. He declared that he could go to a bush
clinic and not be allowed to give antibiotics, whereas a health
ai de was allowed to give them

4:44: 46 PM

DAVID KARPIK, OD, President, Alaska Optonetric Association,
stated that the Alaska Optonetric Association supported SB 162
He declared that the proposed bill was nerely "a technical
addition to existing optonetry |aw" He relayed that strong
neasures already existed to prevent abuse by prescribers, and
tighter record keeping and tracking requirenents also worked

toward this. He expressed his agreenent with the problem for
addictions to prescription nedications however, infrequent,
short term prescriptions were not contributing to this addiction
pr obl em He said there had been no conplaints of abusive

prescribing of controlled substance toward optonetrists in
Alaska in the seven years since statute had allowed the
prescription of controlled substances. He concluded that the
proposed bill mai ntained the opportunity for "continued,
conpassionate relief of their eye related pain in an acute
setting."

4:47:56 PM

MR. SCOIT reported that the sponsor was well aware of the
concern for the abuse of prescription drugs. He noted that his
concern was assuaged by the four day limt on prescriptions. He
pointed out that Rural Alaska, wthout roads, was far nore
i naccessi bl e than rural Wshi ngt on.

4:48: 40 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2014



CHAIR HIGA NS closed public testinony, and said that SB 162
woul d be held over.

4: 48: 54 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 4:48 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2014



